
Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan 

Attachment 2: Written Public Hearing Testimony 

Testimony received between June 27, 2017 and July 6, 2017 

 

 



From: Mark McDonough
To: MCP-Chair
Cc: Hill, Maren; Wright, Gwen; Afzal, Khalid
Subject: Five Squares Development
Date: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 5:52:07 PM

Dear Chairman Anderson,
 
I support Fivesquares Development’s plans for the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro
station. I am a daily Red Line commuter and I live about two miles away from the
station. Having the pop-ups at the station has been a delight. Small local retail is just
what this area needs and I am happy to see that Fivesquares made that happen by
adding Metro railcar kiosks.
 
I am looking forward to using the Village Green as well. I think it’s a great idea and a
perfect place to host outdoor concerts. Their plans for greater density will allow
residents to live, work and play all in the same area.
 
This station is the proper place for greater density. The density recommendation
given by the Planning Board staff is not enough to make this area achieve its fullest
potential. As a daily commuter and nearby resident, I ask that you support greater
density and allow this exciting new transit-oriented development project come to life.
 
Sincerely,
 
Mark McDonough
9317 Linden Ave
Bethesda, MD
301-530-6852
 

mailto:mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org
mailto:Maren.Hill@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:Khalid.Afzal@montgomeryplanning.org


From: Afzal, Khalid
To: Sturgeon, Nancy; Hill, Maren; Sharma, Atul
Subject: FW: FW: Item 9 Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan Amendment
Date: Thursday, June 29, 2017 1:42:59 PM

 
 
Khalid Afzal
Acting Chief, Area 2 Division
Montgomery County Planning Department
8787 Georgia Avenue
Silver Spring, MD 20910
301-495-4650
Khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org

 

From: Krasnow, Rose 
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2017 10:25 AM
To: Afzal, Khalid <khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org>; holly.adams@montgomeryplaning.org
Cc: Wright, Gwen <gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org>; Pugh, Carolyn
<carolyn.pugh@montgomeryplanning.org>
Subject: CRM: FW: Item 9 Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan Amendment
 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Date: June 28, 2017 at 5:53:20 PM EDT

-----Original Message-----
From: Richard Hoye [mailto:richardhoye@me.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 5:12 PM
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Subject: Item 9 Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan
Amendment

Dear Chairman Anderson and fellow Commissioners,

I write in support of the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Master Plan
Amendment and in particular, the plans for Strathmore Square.  

In 1992 I participated in the Master Plan process and supported the plans for
Potomac Investment Properties plans for the southern part of the Metro parking
area.  Today we have an opportunity to bring a greater sense of energy and vitality

mailto:Khalid.Afzal@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:nancy.sturgeon@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:Maren.Hill@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:Atul.Sharma@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:Khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org
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to the Metro site by maximizing density in a mixed use form on this site. As so
precious few areas of our county are served by a Metro station we owe all our
residents a visionary and bold plan to create a vibrant lace for community
building through densities using an FAR of at least 3.5.  Density is not a dirty
word to me or to members of our younger generations who will inherit the places
we make today.  

Tukerman Lane can provide a better pedestrian feel and sense of place for
neighbors and drivers by allowing for a minimal set back of building facades and
heights.  The plan should allow for this appeal.  Today Turckerman Lane is too
much of a suburban freeway.

The plans for this area should maximize that physical and virtual "grid" of streets
and pathways as creatively as possible for the convenience of the public and to
reduce car trips.  I ask that an elevated pathway be constructed over the existing
wood chip path between the Montrose neighborhood and the Metro site. also, a
first class bike path should connect to the Rock Creek Trail for the benefit of the
entire community.  I ask that a "Bike Station" is added to the plan.  This facility is
similar to the Bike Station at Union Station Metro stop.  A bus pull off and
pathway connection to the existing tunnel under Rockville Pike on the west side
should be evaluated and included in the plan.  This feature would enhance bus
access to the Metro station and developments there while reducing bus head ways
and decreasing congestion at the Tuckerman Lane intersection.

As a retired County employee and during my career in the Fire Service I have
needed to rent spare rooms in my house to afford to live in the County I call
home.  And my renters needed the affordability of a shared house, too.  I'm proud
of my lifestyle decision yet painfully aware at how difficult it is to afford housing
in this county.  We owe it to present and future residents of Montgomery County
to maximize housing and the mixed use resources that make a car-free or car-lite
lifestyle a pleasant reality through greater density than specified in this plan.

I thank you for your time and attention.

Sincerely,

Richard E. Hoye

101 Lucas Lane
Bethesda, MD 20814



From: Afzal, Khalid
To: Sturgeon, Nancy; Hill, Maren; Sharma, Atul
Subject: FW: CRM - FW: Grosvenor Development
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 10:19:26 PM

 
 
Khalid Afzal
Acting Chief, Area 2 Division
Montgomery County Planning Department
8787 Georgia Avenue
Silver Spring, MD 20910
301-495-4650
Khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org

 

From: Krasnow, Rose 
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 10:15 AM
To: Afzal, Khalid <khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org>; Adams, Holly
<holly.adams@montgomeryplanning.org>
Cc: Wright, Gwen <gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org>; Pugh, Carolyn
<carolyn.pugh@montgomeryplanning.org>
Subject: CRM - FW: Grosvenor Development
 
 
 
 

From: nekanebet@gmail.com [mailto:nekanebet@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 9:36 AM
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Subject: Grosvenor Development
 
The density should be kept as low as possible, with minimum height. Your own developer said this is not downtown
Bethesda! No one living in Parkside or any of the surrounding communities wants to see the area canyonized.
Nancy Kane
10620 Weymouth Street, 204
Bethesda
 
Sent from my Verizon LG Smartphone
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From: Afzal, Khalid
To: Sturgeon, Nancy; Hill, Maren; Sharma, Atul
Subject: FW: CRM - FW: Strathmore Square
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 10:20:02 PM

 
 
Khalid Afzal
Acting Chief, Area 2 Division
Montgomery County Planning Department
8787 Georgia Avenue
Silver Spring, MD 20910
301-495-4650
Khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org

 

From: Krasnow, Rose 
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 9:58 AM
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
Subject: CRM - FW: Strathmore Square
 
 
A letter of support…..
 
From: Amy Ginsburg [mailto:amy.ginsburg@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2017 9:37 PM
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Subject: Strathmore Square
 
Dear Planning Board:
 
With the hearing coming up, I just wanted to reiterate my support for the re-development of
the Grosvenor-Strathmore area. I am a resident of Stoneybrook which is across the street from
this property, and I believe that a 3.0 FAR would be appropriate for Strathmore Square, as
long as there is green space and the issue of school capacity is solved.
 
Thank you,
 
Amy Ginsburg
4850 Cloister Drive
Rockville, MD 20852
 
--
Amy Ginsburg
301-919-1609
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From: Afzal, Khalid
To: Sturgeon, Nancy; Hill, Maren; Sharma, Atul
Subject: FW: CRM: Grosvenor Strathmore
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 2:16:25 PM
Attachments: CRM FW Grosvenor-Strathmore Presentation Booklet for The MNCPPC Planning Board.msg

CRM FW Strathmore Square development.msg
CRM FW Support for Fivesquares Develepment"s plans for the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro station..msg
CRM FW Strathmore Square.msg

 
 
Khalid Afzal
Acting Chief, Area 2 Division
Montgomery County Planning Department
8787 Georgia Avenue
Silver Spring, MD 20910
301-495-4650
Khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org

 

From: Krasnow, Rose 
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 10:22 AM
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
Subject: CRM: Grosvenor Strathmore
 
Four letters….

mailto:Khalid.Afzal@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:nancy.sturgeon@montgomeryplanning.org
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CRM:  FW: Grosvenor-Strathmore Presentation Booklet for The MNCPPC Planning Board

		From

		MCP-Chair

		To

		Krasnow, Rose

		Recipients

		rose.krasnow@montgomeryplanning.org







-----Original Message-----

From: Sylke Knuppel [mailto:sylke@FivesquaresDev.com] 

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 4:23 PM

To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>; Garcia, Joyce <joyce.garcia@mncppc-mc.org>

Cc: Hill, Maren <maren.hill@montgomeryplanning.org>; Afzal, Khalid <khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org>; Robins, Steven A. <sarobins@lerchearly.com>; Sandy Silverman <s.silverman@perkinseastman.com>; Andrew Altman <andy@FivesquaresDev.com>; Ron Kaplan <ron@FivesquaresDev.com>; Sturgeon, Nancy <nancy.sturgeon@montgomeryplanning.org>

Subject: Grosvenor-Strathmore Presentation Booklet for The MNCPPC Planning Board



Dear Chairman Anderson and Mrs. Garcia,



Please find attached a Presentation Booklet prepared by Fivesquares Development for the Planning Board's consideration in regards to the Grosvenor-Strathmore Minor Master Plan Amendment being heard this Thursday evening at 6pm. Please forward this booklet to the Planning Board members and Staff, as appropriate for the record.



We very much look forward to the opportunity to share our vision for Strathmore Square with the Planning Board members this Thursday.



We are also submitting (8) hardcopies today. Perkins Eastman will be hand-delivering those copies, including copies for the Planning Board, Maren and her team, the Technical Writers, and one extra.



Please feel free to call with any questions. Thank you.



Sylke



Sylke Knuppel, PE

Fivesquares Development, LLC

240-401-7360



Grosvenor_final book_PRINT.compressed.pdf
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June 27, 2017



The Honorable Casey Anderson, Chair
and Members of the Planning Board
Maryland-National Capital Park & Planning Commission 
8787 Georgia Avenue 
Silver Spring, Maryland 20910



Re:  Grosvenor Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan 
Amendment 
	
Dear Chairman Anderson and Members of the Planning Board:



Fivesquares Development (“Fivesquares”), as the developer 
selected by the Washington Metropolitan Area Transportation 
Authority (“WMATA”) for the Joint Development of the  approximately 
14.5-acre Grosvenor Metro station site (the “Property”), is pleased 
to submit our comments and recommendations for the Planning 
Board’s consideration regarding the Grosvenor Strathmore Metro 
Minor Master Plan Amendment (“MMPA” or “Plan”). We welcome 
the opportunity to share with you the work that our team has 
accomplished over the past year on the MMPA. Fivesquares has 
taken significant time to listen to community input and concerns, 
talk with community leaders, and incorporate many of those 
suggestions and ideas into our vision for the development of the 
Property at the Grosvenor Strathmore Metro Station. Our proposal 
is better known as “Strathmore Square.”    
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I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
We applaud the visionary and thorough work of Technical Staff in 
preparing the MMPA. We are fully supportive of the vision and goals of the 
MMPA to optimize density at the Grosvenor Metro station site. We share 
and are committed to the vision to create an exemplary transit-oriented, 
walkable and vibrant community that is well connected through streets, 
blocks and open spaces to surrounding neighborhoods. We commend 
Staff for their thoughtful concepts and recommendations in the Plan. In 
fact, Fivesquares already has altered our original master planning concept 
to mirror the basic site layout that Staff has proposed. Well-designed 
place-making that features arts, culture, a generous central open space, 
neighborhood amenities and beautifully designed buildings will transform 
the current asphalt parking lot into a walkable and distinctive community 
in Montgomery County.  



Our submission is intended to bolster and not detract from the excellent 
Plan that Staff forwarded to the Planning Board for public hearing. Our 
submission discusses who we are and our vision for the Property – more 
specifically, how our vision will create a world-class transit-oriented 
development in furtherance of the vision that Staff articulated in the Plan. 
In order to maximize this opportunity at the Grosvenor Strathmore station 
– a station that is a unique land resource crucial to the County’s growth 
and strategically located in close proximity to both Bethesda and White 
Flint – we are requesting that the Planning Board support the MMPA, but 
modify the Plan accordingly by: 



1.	 Increasing the recommended density from an FAR 2.5 to an FAR 3.0. 
This modest increase in FAR is a critical component for the success 
of the project, particularly given the high infrastructure and land 
costs associated with this development. Separate and apart from 
economics, this request is justified given the Property’s location right 
on top of the Redline and the need to maximize this transit-oriented, 
smart growth opportunity. An FAR 3.0 will provide more moderately 
priced dwelling units, a worthy trade off to promote affordable living 
on top of the Metro. We believe this increase can be accomplished 
without generating significant additional impacts, including on the 
circulation network which we believe has the capacity for, and can 
incorporate mitigation measures to, support increased density. 



2.	 Providing flexibility to implement the MMPA by allowing for a third 
tower to be located on the Property instead of two signiture buildings 
as recommended in the Plan. We believe this can be accommodated 
without increasing impacts, and will allow for height and massing 
across the Property. 



3.	 Affirming the concept of the “Transition Zone” on the Property in the 
area across from the Strathmore Park multi-family condominium 
and embracing the angular plane diagram as set forth in the Zoning 
Ordinance but modifying it to provide needed flexibility to address very 
practical concerns we have related to the design of buildings in this 
zone that may be unnecessarily constrained by the strict regulations 
that are proposed in the MMPA. The two exceptions we request are 
(i) eliminating the 40 foot setback requirement in which to begin the 
angular plane measurement and instead measure from the right-of-
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way line as is typically required and (ii) permitting buildings up to 120 
feet in the Transition Zone instead of 85 feet. Our recommendation 
results in a significantly better product and does not compromise 
on its compatibility with our neighbors to the east. We also are 
requesting that the Transition Zone be modified so that it terminates 
at the northern most boundary of Strathmore Park consistent with 
the relationship of Strathmore Park to the Meridian building at its 
southern boundary. 



4.	 Modifying the recommendation for the Civic Green from 1.25 acres to 
approximately 1 acre in acknowledgment of practical constraints we 
have in meeting WMATA’s set back requirements for the garage and 
ensuring that the Civic Green is lined with residential units that face 
the park and not the façade of a garage. We are in full agreement 
with, and are passionate supporters of, the Civic Green and Plaza 
concepts and are committed to their implementation. Moreover, we 
exceed the overall site requirement for 10% of the area to be allocated 
to open space by providing over 2 acres of open space. 
 
We fundamentally agree with the vision and principles of the MMPA 
and have adopted its site planning as the basis for our master plan 
for the Property. By providing for a small upward adjustment in 
density and allowing for greater flexibility as discussed herein, we are 
confident that we will be able to deliver this important development to 
the citizens of Montgomery County and WMATA. This is a tremendous 
opportunity and we are thrilled to be a part of it. 
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Symphony Park



 



II. INTRODUCTION
Fivesquares has a proven track-record in place-making, quality 
development and strong commitment to Montgomery County. The MMPA 
is distinguished by the fact that it is responding to a Joint Development 
Agreement (JDA) between WMATA and Fivesquares, not a land banking 
exercise or a matter of adopting a master plan with the hopes that it will 
spur interest in development. The MMPA that will be adopted will serve as 
the foundation for development at the WMATA site for its next generation 
of growth, and while this may occur in phases over 20 years, development 
is intended to be initiated immediately, bringing with it the environmental, 
social, and fiscal benefits of a transit-oriented development opportunity.
Fivesquares is committed to implementing the MMPA and developing a 
model for transit-oriented development in the County as its principals have 
done in all of their award-winning projects. Fivesquares was co-founded by 
Ron Kaplan, a long-time Montgomery County resident with a distinguished 
and proven track record in developing some of the most innovative and 
award-winning projects in the County, including: Bethesda Row, when 
he was the Chief Investment Officer at Federal Realty Investment Trust; 
Symphony Park, as a principal and co-founder of Streetscape Partners; 
and Clarksburg Premium Outlet Center, that together with Simon 
Properties and New England Development, recently had a successful 
grand opening as a premiere destination and economic development 
center in the County. 



Ron Kaplan’s partner and co-founder of Fivesquares, Andrew Altman, is 
a recognized leader in the city planning profession from his work as the 
former District of Columbia Director of the Office of Planning under Mayor 
Anthony Williams, and most recently as the Chief Executive of the London 
Olympic Park Legacy Corporation where he led the master development of 
the largest regeneration and transit-oriented development project in the 
United Kingdom. 



Fivesquares was formed to apply our extensive experience in successfully 
developing some of the most recognized walkable, enjoyable and 
sustainable places in the real estate and urban planning profession to 
unique opportunities such as the Grosvenor Strathmore Metro Station. 



Bethesda Row
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STRATHMORE SQUARE COMMUNITY OUTREACH OVERVIEW 



Fivesquares has undertaken a sustained and multi-faceted community 
outreach and education effort, which has directly reached more than 
10,000 residents over the past 11 months. When social media efforts 
are taken into account, the reach extends to more than 100,000 County 
residents. 



■■ Held more than 30 in-person meetings with a variety of community 
representatives and residents, including small meetings with nearby 
homeowners and civic association leadership, presentations and open 
houses at local apartment communities, one-on-one meetings with 
interested residents, and meetings hosted by community members in 
their homes.  



■■ Held a major community open house and workshop where basic ideas 
regarding transit-oriented development and the site were presented 
and small groups worked on specific aspects of the potential 
master plan, such as place making, sustainability, urban design and 
transportation. 
		



■■ Sent frequent emails to the community with updates about our plans, 
notifications about upcoming community meetings, and requests for 
feedback.  



■■ Created the project website, www.strathmoresquare.com. The website 
features information on various aspects of the plans and provides 
visitors to the site with the opportunity to provide comments and ask 
questions. More than 7,000 visits to the site have occurred since its 
inception last fall. 



■■ Regularly posted information on Strathmore Square’s Facebook and 
Twitter accounts and posted ads to direct people to the website  



for more information. Approximately 800 people follow us on social 
media. More than 3,500 user reactions such as likes, shares and 
comments have posted. The total number of impressions top 200,000. 
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■■ Distributed a Spring Community Survey, which was accessible through 
social media, our website, at meetings and via email. We received a 
total of 445 responses, which informed our decision-making for which 
amenities to offer at Strathmore Square. 



■■ Initiated a second Community Survey sent through U.S. mail, email and 
social media to more than 4500 people in the Grosvenor-Strathmore 
Metro Station area as a means to continue communication with the 
community and gather their thoughts and ideas for Strathmore Square. 
 



■■ Placed phone calls to nearly 750 people to garner feedback and provide 
information about the pop-ups and Strathmore Square. 



There have been two primary outcomes of these community 
engagement efforts:	  



■■ Input into our master planning which has resulted in our including a 
major civic open space, an emphasis on connectivity, security and 
sustainability, and, most importantly, a focus on providing  
neighborhood-serving amenities. 



■■ The “Pop-Ups”: As a direct result of numerous community members 
voicing their concern that the area lacks basic neighborhood goods, 
and that the Metro station is not a welcoming environment, we 
decided to test whether we could bring some convenience items to 
the community immediately rather than wait years until development 
is initiated. The “Pop Ups” at Grosvenor, which were reconstructed 
from a decommissioned Metro car we acquired from WMATA, featured 
music provided by the Music Center, art by local school students, food 
kiosks and local merchandisers. It was intended to demonstrate what 
“Strathmore Square” could be like and that the benefits of master 
planning and transit-oriented development could be experienced now 
rather than in the distant future. 



FIVESQUARE’S VISION 



Strathmore Square is well positioned to fill an important need, particularly 
for residential, transit oriented development, close to existing job centers, 
along with local serving retail. One of the qualities that make Strathmore 
Square particularly unique, besides its strategic location literally on top of 
the Metro Station is its proximity to the federal institutions at the National 
Institutes of Health, National Naval Medical Center, and the Uniformed 
Services Universities of the Health Sciences. Strathmore Square is likely to 
be a significant residential hub for science and technology workers at these 
locations. This convenient living environment will provide residents a choice 
of access to employment and meeting their daily needs.



The Grosvenor Strathmore Metrorail Station is just a few stops to Bethesda, 
and one stop to White Flint. The station is surrounded by multi-family 
residential uses and a significant amount of off-site tree and forest 
coverage, including Rock Creek Park. The station truly can be dubbed 
the “Green” station. Despite the stations highly desirable and strategic 
location, there is no established center and there is little connection to 
the adjacent neighborhoods. And despite the high quality development 
located to the south and east of the Property that was approved as part 
of the first phase of the WMATA Joint Development, the area lacks a true 
sense of place. Strathmore Square will fill that gap by implementing the 
recommendations contained in the MMPA. It will serve to complement, not 
compete with, the existing County job centers, by bringing workers closer to 
their jobs and providing alternative modes to reach those jobs other than by 
single occupancy vehicle and thus countering patterns of suburban sprawl. 
Importantly, Strathmore Square will build on the greatest cultural asset in 
the immediate area and one of the most important in our region, the Music 
Center at Strathmore. The presence of the Center and allocating space for 
the Center on the Property will be a differentiating feature that will give the 
Property a distinctive identity along the Red Line corridor.
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Fivesquare’s proposal embraces the very best practices that one should 
expect to be included in the MMPA for a high-quality transit oriented 
development. Fivesquares is committed to realizing the MMPA vision 
to develop a transit-oriented community on the WMATA site that will 
create a walkable and vibrant new center in the County integrating the 
arts, residences, affordable housing, beautiful open spaces and vibrant 
places with neighborhood amenities.  



More specifically, Strathmore Square:



■■ Gets the land uses right.
■■ Promotes density in exactly the right place.
■■ Creates convenient pedestrian and bicycling connections.
■■ Ensures great urban design.
■■ Creates compact development patterns.
■■ Manages parking.
■■ Makes the station a place where people want to locate.
■■ Creates a healthy stock of affordable housing on top of the Metro. 



FIVESQUARES INITIAL VISION MMPA MASTER PLAN



FIVESQUARES REVISED VISION
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Strathmore Square also furthers the tenets of smart growth that the 
County has embraced over the years. The County has worked with 
its excellent Planning Staff on a number of master and sector plans, 
like Downtown Bethesda, White Flint, Friendship Heights, Glenmont, 
Great Seneca Science Corridor, Chevy Chase Lake, Friendship Heights, 
Twinbrook and others, all of which concentrate density in close proximity 
to transit and encourage high density opportunities, particularly on those 
sites in close proximity to heavy and light rail. The Grosvenor Strathmore 
station unquestionably belongs in this category. For quite some time, the 
County has embraced concentrating density around Metro Stations as the 
main tenet of smart growth. This principle has been applied to properties 
adjacent and in close proximity to transit. In this case, the Property literally 
is on top of the Metro. This opportunity to concentrate density on top of 
a Redline station is scarce and cannot result in a lost opportunity. This is 
why the Strathmore Square proposal makes the utmost sense and should 
be embraced in the MMPA.  



We believe (as embellished in the MMPA) that the vibrancy of the 
Grosvenor Strathmore station can be significantly enhanced from what 
is an aged and rather dull station to a vibrant, predominantly residential 
center with living, arts and culture (through our partnership with the 
Music Center at Strathmore) and a small amount of neighborhood-
serving amenities, possibly some dining and shopping, and pedestrian 
activity both during the day and the evening. We think this new enlivened 
community will attract those professionals who need to get to work each 
day, as well as our senior community, many of whom are downsizing 
and would like to remain in their community. One only needs to consider 
the most recent addition to the station – the Pop-Up Retail that greets 
passengers near the entrance to the station – to see the potential of the 
Property to be a center of a vibrant community. This modest but important 



and innovative effort was a major breakthrough with WMATA, and really is 
the precursor of great, exciting and innovate elements to be introduced as 
part of Strathmore Station.



More specifically, Strathmore Square also will: 



■■ Establish a unique “place-making” character for the entire site through 
our partnership with the Strathmore Music Center featuring spaces 
for exciting programming opportunities for publicly accessible classes, 
smaller performances and studios. 
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■■ Include opportunities for small shops and local retail.  



■■ Become a premiere residential community for those seeking a transit-
oriented lifestyle that will provide significant affordable housing. 



■■ Create a central open space that is flexible and will function as a 
central gathering space for the broader neighborhood. 



■■ Improve and enhance connections to the neighborhood, Metro 
and open spaces by establishing a street grid that ensures easy 
access for all of the neighboring communities.



■■ Promote smart growth and sustainability with multi-modal 
mobility options. 



■■ Protect the surrounding open and green spaces. 



■■ Integrate “green design” into all aspects of the project, from 
innovative stormwater management incorporated into the 
streetscape to green roofs and the orientation of buildings to 
maximize solar exposure. 



■■ Be compatible with the surrounding community through 
sensitive design. 



Our premise, based on our experience and study of nationally-recognized 
best practices for successful transit-oriented development, is that for 
Grosvenor to fully succeed, it must have an identity and become a 
walkable community with streets, blocks, open spaces, a diversity of 
building types, and levels of affordability that promote community and  
give it a “sense of place.” 



These are the “building blocks” of the current and future generation of 
transit-oriented communities. These principles stand in contrast to the 
prior generation of suburban high-density development that generally 
featured large residential towers surrounded by extensive parking lots, 
where there was little sense of connectivity or walkability. 



In fact, the existing North Bethesda/Garrett Park Master Plan, of which 
the Grosvenor Sector Plan is a part, reflected this prior typology of 
development in its illustrations of large “gateway” buildings oriented 
toward Rockville Pike. In many cases, there was substantial density 
and building heights but they did not result in communities that had 
defined neighborhood centers, a sense of physical connection to a larger 
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community outside of the buildings, or any reason to encourage walkability 
or use of transit.



Our vision for what will distinguish the Grosvenor Strathmore Metro Station 
among Red Line WMATA station areas and imbue it with a sense of identity 
and place, are the following elements (these are illustrated in the attached 
PowerPoint prepared by Perkins Eastman) all of which should be included in 
the MMPA:
 
1. ARTS AND CULTURE: STRATHMORE SQUARE 



■■ We are thrilled that the Music Center at Strathmore is a partner in 
the proposed development of the Metro site. The Music Center at 
Strathmore is one of the greatest assets for this area and the County 
and is the distinguishing feature of this community along the Red 
Line. We want to build on this great strength and make the Center a 
prominent feature of the master plan. This partnership builds on the 
successful partnership that Ron Kaplan implemented at Symphony Park 
where new residents were given memberships to the Center and site 
planning emphasized the creation of open spaces, trails and luxurious 
landscaping that were designed to be of mutual benefit to both 
Strathmore and the new residential community. 



■■ The name for our project was selected as “Strathmore Square” to 
emphasize the centrality of the Music Center at Strathmore as not only a 
future user of space and buildings on the Property but as the animating 
heart of the community that will give it identity, inspiration, activity and 
a soul. Staff indicates and we concur that the planning effort also will 
explore ways to enhance visibility and connectivity to the Music Center 
at Strathmore. 



■■ “Strathmore Square” will be a vibrant public plaza that will transform 
the current Metro Plaza from a concrete square and parking lot into an 
active public square lined with ground floor spaces including the Music 
Center at Strathmore studios and classrooms. The ground floor spaces 
might contain “roll-up” transparent garage-type doors that will be open 
during nice weather to extend indoor activities to the Square and erase 
the rigid separation of interior and exterior spaces that deaden many 
public spaces. These arts-related spaces will ensure that Strathmore 
Square is animated and will provide exciting opportunities for local 
residents of all ages to enjoy Arts Center programs, including a potential 
day care center. 
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■■ We also can imagine a “Strathmore Square Marketplace” that would be 
a ground-floor market-hall type of space for local grocers, restaurants 
and growers to offer food and goods that appeal to the local community 
in an area that is devoid of these services.  



■■ Moreover, Strathmore Square will be programmed with outdoor 
activities, such as pop-up markets, performances, special events, and 
community art as demonstrated by Fivesquares this summer at our 
“Summer Metro Pop-Up.”



 
2. CIVIC GREEN: THE CENTRAL GATHERING PLACE 



■■ The organizing feature of the future development will be a central open 
space that will serve as a gathering spot for the community and a place 
of exchange between future and current residents of the neighborhoods 
surrounding the Property.  



■■ The Plaza at Strathmore Square will lead directly to the Civic Green so 
there is visual and pedestrian continuity between the Metro station 
and the residential development and surrounding neighborhoods. The 
walk to Metro will no longer be through a path along the parking lot, 
but will be through a beautiful, relaxing open space.  



■■ The connections to surrounding neighborhoods and Strathmore will  
be enhanced and improved connections for pedestrian safety. 



■■ The Civic Green will have benches and landscape features that 
make it a well-used locus of activity for the community. Through our 
survey, we already have received numerous exciting ideas for future 
features to be considered for this open space (see the appendix for 
survey results). Importantly, buildings that line the Civic Green will be 
designed to provide setbacks to ensure the Green has ample sunlight 
and also will ensure the space feels safe and active.  



3. CONNECTIVITY  
■■ Site planning for the Property, as highlighted in the MMPA, will be 



based on the principle of maximizing connectivity to surrounding 
communities and the Metro station through streets that connect 
neighboring development, such as (Strathmore Hall Street) and 
well-landscaped stairs to Tuckerman Lane that will provide easy and 
attractive access for local residents.  



■■ Neighboring buildings that are currently isolated from one another 
and must use the parking lot to reach the Metro station will be 
connected through beautifully landscaped streets and a street grid 
that will weave the entire area into a cohesive neighborhood. 











14



■■ We support recommendations promoting bicycle lanes and 
improving connections to nearby trails that would make cycling a 
more attractive and viable alternative for the community and for 
promoting healthier lifestyle choices. We intend to make bicycle 
transportation a key theme of the development. 



4. ARCHITECTURAL DIVERSITY AND QUALITY DESIGN
■■ We believe that architecture and design are the difference between 



creating a successful environment that people will enjoy and a 
place that is cold and alienating. The heights of buildings are not 
an adequate measure of whether a project is good or bad. A shorter 
building, poorly designed with squat massing can feel more oppressive 
than a beautifully designed slender tower. Most importantly, primary 
attention must be given to the design of the ground floor where people 
will experience the buildings. Blank street walls devoid of activity or 



parking garages fronting onto sidewalks will have a more deleterious 
impact than the height of buildings. Streetscapes – the landscaping of 
the sidewalks and public realm – are vital to the experience of a place. 



■■ Strathmore Square will be distinguished by high quality architecture, 
a diversity of building styles and coordination of heights to ensure an 
interesting, sensitive and attractive neighborhood. 



■■ The fundamental reason we can affirmatively state these 
commitments with confidence is that the Property is being master 
developed by Fivesquares as one owner and not by multiple owners 
with different intentions that only can be controlled through strict 
regulations that are difficult to enforce. As the master developer of 
the entire site, we can ensure that the design of multiple buildings is 
coordinated to complement one another, and that the public realm 
is designed and implemented comprehensively rather than in a 
piecemeal manner.
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5. SENSITIVITY TO CONTEXT
■■ While we believe that the Property must achieve its full density 



potential as a transit-oriented development on one of the few truly 
multi-modal Metro stations in the County, we also are confident this 
can be accomplished in a way that is sensitive to the surrounding 
neighborhood. This can be done by ensuring that buildings along 
Tuckerman Road across from Strathmore Park are of similar height 
and that taller buildings are located on portions of the Property where 
they do not create significant visual impacts.  



■■ Again, height is less of an issue than the design of the buildings. The 
surrounding area already includes buildings with significant heights, 
such as the buildings across Rockville Pike and the Meridian building 
on Tuckerman Lane. The implementation of design guidelines that 
are applied in subsequent approval processes will ensure that the 
massing, setbacks and design quality are thoughtfully addressed.



6. SUSTAINABILITY 	
■■ Significantly, the Property will be developed as a sustainable and 



environmentally sensitive community. What is now a sea of parking 
and a parking structure will be transformed into a green, transit-
oriented development. The large stormwater management pond will 
be replaced with stormwater management that is designed utilizing 
Environmental Site Design (“ESD”). Bioretention, bioswales, native 
vegetation and water conservation features will be the norm as will 
pervious paving in select locations.  



■■ The Property is surrounded by what we refer to as the “Grosvenor 
Greenbelt.”  The MMPA area is unique among areas adjacent to 
transit stations in that it is surrounded by a vast network of protected 
open space. Rock Creek Park (77 acres), forest conservation (9.5 
acres), Strathmore Hall (19 acres), a 27 acre golf course and other 
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large green areas are located within a ¼ mile radius of the site.  
This is comparable to a “greenbelt” that further protects surrounding 
neighborhoods from future development as these areas cannot be 
built on. 



■■ The MMPA promotes sustainability for development on the Property 
and its buildings. This promotes efficient usage of this limited 
resource, promotes physical and mental health and well-being, and 
social equity. Sustainability requires strategies for reducing energy 
demand and carbon output. The largest contributor to greenhouse gas 
emissions are vehicle emissions and the Plan has a goal of reducing 
vehicle miles traveled (VMT). We are laser focused on creating a 
sustainable community by maximizing density near transit and vastly 
improving bicycle and pedestrian connections to promote multi-modal 
usage and a “Complete Streets” design for the Property.



7. PROMOTING TRANSIT
■■ We envision that the majority of future residents who will be attracted 



to live at the Strathmore Square are doing so because they want 
to use the Metro for work or as a major aspect of their lifestyle and 
desire to reduce their dependence on the automobile.  



■■ We not only envision building the minimum amount of parking 
required, but also offering a menu of Transit Demand Management 
(TDM) options to incentivize transit-usage both during peak and 
off-peak hours. These measures may include reducing the parking 
counts, providing transit subsidies for our residents and providing 
promotional materials for other forms of transportation – notably for 
the Redline and bike sharing arrangements. 
 



■■ We are advocates of future Bus Rapid Transit service and the Rock 
Spring Circulator that connects the Grosvenor Strathmore Metro 
Station to Rock Spring. This is in addition to the multiple bus routes 
and private shuttles operating out of the station. 



■■ We acknowledge that future residents will have the need for some 
local trips and we envision incorporating a car-sharing program into 
the Community as well. 
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III. FIVESQUARE’S RESPONSE TO  
WORKING DRAFT
Staff has done an excellent job preparing the Master Plan. But, in 
order to achieve the important transit-oriented vision for the Grosvenor 
Strathmore Metro station as embraced by Fivesquares, we respectfully 
request that the Planning Board consider the following points as part of its 
deliberations on the MMPA: 



1. FAR and Development Target 
The recommendations within the Plan are based on a density scenario 
of 2.5 FAR. While we recognize that Staff’s FAR recommendation is a 
meaningful increase from that set forth in the existing Master Plan, we 
urge the Planning Board to adjust the FAR to a 3.0. This will provide the 
flexibility necessary to transform the Property and afford the significant 
infrastructure investment required to realize the Strathmore Square 
vision. The cost of the land, together with the heavy cost of infrastructure 
and improvements, including, but not limited to those required by 
WMATA (particularly replacement parking), significant open space and 
amenities, and CR zone public benefits requirements justifies this 
incremental increase, particularly given the location of the Property 
right on top of a heavy rail Metro station. An FAR 3.0 will provide more 
Moderately Priced Dwelling Units, a worthy tradeoff to promote living on 
top of Metro. We are certain that a project developed at an FAR 3.0 can 
be designed to be equally compatible with the surrounding area as that 
being proposed by Staff without creating significant impacts to the local 
community. Furthermore, this increase also will have negligible impacts 
on infrastructure and public facilities, most notably schools and roads. An 
FAR of 3.0 is also consistent with the density afforded other Metro stations 
along the Redline.  
 



Increasing the MMPA density to 3.0 FAR is justified for the following 
primary reasons:



Consistent with County Growth Goals:  
■■ Increased density is consistent with fulfilling County growth goals 



and optimizing smart growth at one of the last developable Metro 
sites. The County’s General Plan and Master Plans, the Subdivision 
Staging Policy, and the recently released Rental Study all emphasize 
the severe imbalance in the supply and demand for land to 
accommodate growth in a sustainable way, and prioritizes future 
growth in multi-modal, transit-accessible locations, with Metro station 
areas being the most valuable and scarce of all such opportunities. 
These sites must be utilized to their fullest potential. 



■■ There are many Montgomery County policy documents related 
to current and future growth patterns in the County that justify 
our request and all come to same conclusion:  the most effective 
strategy to accommodate future growth is to focus and concentrate 
development on multi-modal, transit-accessible sites. This is the only 
sustainable future for a County that is urbanizing and is projected to 
continue to evolve from a “bedroom commuter suburb” to a “regional 
growth center.” According to the Subdivision Staging Policy, the future 
of Montgomery County will be “more multi-modal, more diverse, more 
populous.” 



■■ It cannot be understated how critical the decision regarding 
the appropriate density for the Property is to the future growth 
and development pattern of the County and region. Simply put, 
the Property is the epitome of a smart growth, transit-oriented 
development opportunity. What differentiates the Property from many 
other laudable master plans that strive to promote transit-oriented 
development and reduce automobile-related development and sprawl, 
is that the Property literally sits directly on the Metro station. 
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■■ We believe that as a County and region, it is imperative that this scarce 
land resource be taken full advantage of not only in the short term but 
for future generations when sites for transit-oriented, environmentally 
responsible development will be exceedingly rare. Given the dwindling 
land capacity to accommodate future growth in the County, achieving 
the full density capacity of this site is a matter of utmost priority if we 
are to achieve County growth goals to focus growth in transit-accessible 
sites and protect agriculture land. Again, a 3.0 FAR will provide the 
flexibility needed to accomplish this development without jeopardizing 
its compatibility with the surrounding area. And, an increase FAR will 
result in more affordable housing in this highly desirable location. 



■■ Crucially, we simply cannot view the development of the Property 
at the Grosvenor Strathmore station in the context of only County 
goals. The Property also must be understood in the much broader 
perspective of global climate change goals where transit-oriented 
development has been proven to be one of the most effective means 
to reduce carbon emissions and pollution. 



High infrastructure costs must be offset through density incentives: 
■■ Replacement of all 412 WMATA surface parking spaces is pre-



requisite to development of the Metro site. This; however, only 
accounts for the land, which still cannot accommodate development 
until site infrastructure including new stormwater treatment systems, 
underground utilities, streets and amenities are constructed.  



■■ The basic site costs of implementing the vision of the MMPA - a 
vision we share - to create the open spaces, plazas, bikeways and 
neighborhood amenities, and the early costs before significant 
revenue is generated are substantial and daunting. Place-making 
requires significant early investment. The incentive to make this 
investment is increased density.  



■■ Existing WMATA operations on the site include the station and tracks, 
10+ bus routes, a kiss and ride facility, a 1,500 space parking garage 
which will be expanded as part of our improvements, the “Arts walk”, 
limited access bus-only lanes into and out of the facility, associated 
pedestrian spaces and bus shelters, and proposed bicycle facilities 
including (approximately 87) new bike lockers with a full service 
bike facility. This area is not available for development, but will be 
upgraded to current WMATA standards as part of this development 
and has setback requirements to the future proposed residential 
development. The MMPA also acknowledges this as a significant 
challenge for development on the surrounding site.
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■■ When one takes these existing and continuing operations into 
account, as well as necessary internal street dedication required for 
circulation of the site (grade challenges abound for connections to 
Tuckerman), the area for future development becomes constrained. 
Because of Fivesquares desire to create a central gathering place 
and amenities for residents, commuters, and the local community,  
we believe a higher density of 3.0 FAR is necessary to accomplish  
our vision.  



Density of 3.0 FAR Can Be Accommodated Without Major 
Traffic Impacts.



■■ Staff’s traffic analysis limited density to 2.5 FAR in part, but not 
entirely, due to constraints imposed by the traffic model. These 
studies, which seek to predict traffic patterns and impacts that might 
hypothetically transpire over the next 20 years, constrain the place 
making potential of this Transit Oriented Development (TOD).  



■■ Additional analyses completed by Wells + Associates demonstrate a 
3.0 FAR can be achieved with respect to the roadway network. This 
analysis uses the same methodology and assumptions of the traffic 
analysis that were used by M-NCPPC. The additional traffic analysis 
evaluated the study intersections using M-NCPPC traffic forecasts 
and Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) analyses for both 2.5 and 3.0 
FAR traffic conditions with a proposed operational improvement at 
the MD 355/Tuckerman Lane (North) intersection. The additional 
analysis demonstrates the intersection would not be a limiting factor 
to reaching the 3.0 FAR density (see appendix with the detailed 
analysis and illustration of the potential mitigation measures) 



■■ The proposed intersection improvement is an easily adopted 
mitigation measure that will minimize impacts to the community and 
result in delays below the 120 second policy threshold standard. 
The improvement at the critical MD 355/Tuckerman Lane North 



intersection includes lane use changes on Tuckerman Lane (North) 
and modification to the signal phasing.  



It also is important to note that the HCM analysis has assumed complete 
build-out of all approved master plans in the adjacent area, including White 
Flint, which will not achieve that build-out within the proposed planning 
horizon. These proposed densities are generating impacts which will not be 
realized, and as a result are constraining Strathmore Square from realizing 
its potential on top of a Metro station where its impacts will be significantly 
less due to higher multi-modal usage. 



Moreover, as the Planning Board is well aware, projections of the impacts 
of future growth on traffic patterns are inherently complicated and difficult 
to predict as changes in technology and lifestyle are rapidly changing 
and reducing auto dependence. Changing mode splits and potential new 
transportation alternatives, such as Bus Rapid Transit, and innovations 
such as Autonomous Vehicles, will all profoundly affect the impact of 
traffic over the 20+ years that the MMPA projects and it will take to realize 
development of the Metro site. Accordingly, traffic should not be a limiting 
factor to increasing density since it will in actuality meet the thresholds 
established by the County.



Zoning Recommendation for the Property:  CR 3.0 C .5 R 3.0 H 260. 



We think the Planning Board should consider allowing a .5 FAR of 
commercial to allow for a potential future mixed use opportunity, instead 
of .25 FAR. While it is unlikely that .5 FAR will be built in its entirety 
anytime in the near term, the MMPA is a long term document that needs 
to accommodate potential long term conditions and solutions. It is quite 
possible that the community may desire a greater commercial presence 
sometime in the future and this opportunity should be preserved. 
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2. Flexibility to Implement the MMPA and Achieve 3.0 FAR 
The following recommendations are based on a careful study of how the 
MMPA can be translated into parcels and buildings that are practical and 
efficient given site constraints. We should emphasize that we are in general 
agreement with many of the core principles of the MMPA. We do believe, 
however, that there are areas where more flexibility is required to ensure 
the MMPA can be implemented, and where modifications can be made to 
accommodate a 3.0 FAR without creating significant additional impacts. 



We only have proposed a small set of points that we believe are critical at 
this phase to modify so as to not preclude more creative solutions later in 
the development review process. We think it is important to note that there 
is a balance required between what is accomplished in the Minor Master 
Plan Amendment and what is better addressed in subsequent regulatory 
approval processes when specific buildings will be designed. We appreciate 
Staff’s effort to strike a balance between the MMPA that is intended to 
establish the regulatory envelop and basic development parameters for 
the site (for example, density and height), and more specific site planning. 
However, we believe that some of the recommendations are excessive and 
lacking flexibility – there is too much specificity in certain sections of the 
MMPA that is better left to subsequent approval processes. The MMPA 
should establish the basic principles and allow flexibility for future buildings 
to be designed that will take into account more extensive architectural 
design as the requirements of site infrastructure, building pads and market 
conditions are better understood and a phasing program is established. 
As a long-term plan that will be implemented over 20 years, it is premature 
and impractical to be overly specific.



3. Tower and Locations  



The Plan creates zone locations for the placement of signature buildings 
with heights up to 260’. These areas, shown on p. 41 of the Plan, are 
located in close proximity to the Station, on the western portion of the 
Property. The Plan specifically limits development to two buildings. This 
recommendation is too prescriptive and limiting. We have studied the 
Property, prepared massing studies and concluded that the project is 
able to accommodate at least one more tower on the northern portion of 
the Property near Tuckerman Lane, with a height not to exceed 220 feet 
and without compromising compatibility, open space or achievable public 
benefits. Importantly, an additional tower does not create shadow impacts 
on neighboring communities and its visual impact is minimal. We attached 
a plan that depicts the proposed location for the additional tower along 
the northern portion of Tuckerman Lane. We urge the Planning Board to 
endorse our recommendation. One additional tower is preferable to shorter, 
squattier buildings. We believe slender, well designed towers are preferable 
to more thickly massed buildings that may be less attractive. A variety 
of towers varying in height will create a more visually attractive overall 
appearance and experience. Of particular importance, the Plan, which is 
likely to be a living document for the next 15 to 20 years or so, should not 
preclude this design opportunity. Instead, these compatibility concerns still 
should be addressed as part of design review when specific buildings have 
been designed and their impacts can be properly evaluated. 



4. Compatibility on Tuckerman Lane 



We understand Staff’s proposal regarding compatibility on Tuckerman 
Lane but view Staff’s recommendation as presenting significant practical 
problems that limit the ability to design efficient buildings, and are 
therefore excessive at this early stage. Again, we accept and are in full 
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agreement with the fundamental principles of a building opposite 
Strathmore Park being of similar height, and that there should be a 
setback,  even based on an angular plane as suggested by Staff. 



While staff’s reliance on the 45 degree angular plane requirement set 
forth in Section 4.1.8 of the Zoning Ordinance technically may not apply 
to this particular situation, we accept its principle and what Staff is 
trying to accomplish. This provision of the Zoning Ordinance requires 
certain setbacks and height placement for buildings that adjoin or 
confront agricultural, rural residential, residential detached or residential 



townhouse zones. That is not the case for development on the Property. 
The Property is across from the Strathmore Park property that is zoned 
PD - 25 with multi-family units. Again, we are endorsing the use of the 45 
degree angular plane but with one important caveat – The measurement 
should be taken from the property line (right-of-way line) and not from 
a 40 foot additional setback from that point as suggested by Staff. This 
additional setback is not needed to ensure compatibility with Strathmore 
Park. Furthermore, eliminating the 40 foot setback will result in a superior 
building in our development – one that will have better massing, and 
more green and courtyard space for its residents. We ask that the 40 foot 
setback from the Property line be eliminated from the Plan’s Transitional 
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Zone. Again, this is a level of specificity that is best reserved for subsequent 
review processes when a building is designed rather than creating a rigid 
rule in the MMPA that may have the unintended consequence of neither 
achieving the visual mitigation that is desired or a quality residential 
building that can be efficiently constructed.



The MMPA also calls for a 200 foot transition zone (measured from the 
property line) to promote compatibility with the multifamily Strathmore 
Park development to the east with heights not to exceed 85 feet 
within the zone. We are requesting that the height in this Transitional 
Zone be increased to 120 feet. Perkins Eastman studied the heights 
and concluded that 120 feet will not have any greater impact on the 
Strathmore Park community than 85 feet and is consistent with the 
current Meridian apartment building directly adjacent to Strathmore Park. 
Furthermore, any buildings located directly across from the Strathmore 
Park will be generally of the same height. The Perkins Eastman PowerPoint 
illustrates this point. This will allow for more flexibility to create buildings in 
this Transition Zone that will be better massed through a potentially more 
efficient distribution of height and mass and are better able to achieve the 
desired goal of mitigating visual impacts through well designed transitions. 
We agree that this Transition Zone is important and believe that having a 
broader envelop will allow building designs to be generated that can be 
better evaluated in subsequent processes than attempting to determine 
that the precise building envelop in the MMPA. 
 
Finally, the Transition Zone, as depicted on page 41 of the MMPA, also 
is too expansive along Tuckerman Lane. As drafted, the Transition Zone 
cuts into (and severely impacts) development pads to the north that do 
not require these additional restrictions. Its northern boundary essentially 
should mirror Strathmore Park’s northern building edge and be consistent 
with the current relationship to Meridian apartments. 



5. Open Space 



The Plan calls for the establishment of parks and open spaces that 
complement area park amenities and provide on-site recreation 
opportunities for new and existing residents. The Plan calls for the 
development of a central Civic Green, a minimum of 1.25 acres on the 
Property. The Plan also encourages the creation of a public open space or 
pocket park of .25 acres along Tuckerman Lane. 
 
Our plan for Strathmore Square provides approximately 2.0 acres of 
open space overall, which exceeds the 10% open space requirement as 
set forth in the Zoning Ordinance. We are in complete agreement with 
the principle of creating a significant Civic Green and public plaza at the 
Metro entrance leading to the Civic Green. We request flexibility for this 
area to be approximately 1.0 acre due to very practical constraints that 
will be considered when there is an actual and more detailed design 
in subsequent review processes. These considerations include: the 
required set back distance between the extension of the WMATA garage 
and the new residential building fronting the civic square as required by 
WMATA; and that we need a minimum building width to ensure that a liner 
building fronts the civic square and not a parking garage which would be 
antithetical to the MMPA urban design goals. 



As previously mentioned, the Property also is surrounded by a Green Belt 
that contains parkland and open space which also must be considered as 
part of the overall open space network and resource that residents  
will enjoy. 
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IV. CONCLUSION
We are attaching the PowerPoint presentation that we prepared in 
conjunction with Perkins Eastman DC. This submission is intended to 
guide you through our thoughts regarding Fivesquare’s vision for the 
MMPA. We very much appreciate the efforts that the Planning Board, 
Staff and the Community have made on this important MMPA. Staff 
produced an excellent document for the Planning Board’s review; one 
that truly advances and embraces transit-oriented development at 
such a strategic location. 
 
We are in fundamental agreement with the vision and principles of 
the MMPA and have adopted its site planning as the basis for our 
master plan for the Property. We believe that through a small upward 
adjustment in density and increased flexibility that acknowledges the 
complexity and challenges of implementing the MMPA particularly 
with high infrastructure costs, we will be able to achieve the ambitious 
vision of the MMPA. Our comments are intended to build on all of 
the many positive elements contained in the MMPA with the goal to 
create a world class transit-oriented development. We look forward to 
working with the Board, Staff, and the Community to reach a common 
vision for this important area atop the Grosvenor Strathmore Metro 
Station. We will be available at the Planning Board’s worksessions. 
Thank you in advance for your consideration of our position. 



Sincerely,
	
	
	 Ron D. Kaplan



	 Andrew Altman
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AERIAL MAP



Rockville Pike
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THE RED LINE CONTEXT
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THE “GREEN” STATION
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THE GREEN “BELT”
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EXISTING IMAGES – GROSVENOR METRO



■■ Significant amount of protected greenspace 
in ¼ mile radius 



■■ No real established center 



■■ Little connection to adjacent neighborhoods 



■■ No established sense of place 



■■ Diminished presence on MD 355
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TOD BEST PRACTICES



From RECONNECTING AMERICA



■■ Get the Land Uses Right



■■ Promote Density



■■ Create Convenient Pedestrian Connections



■■ Ensure Good Urban Design



■■ Create Compact Development Patterns



■■ Manage Parking



■■ Make the Station a Place
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VISION
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PROJECT VISION



■■ Establish unique “place-making” character 
for the entire site;  



■■ Include opportunities for small shop, 
residential and local retail; 



■■ Create a central open space that is flexible 
and the center of the neighborhood; 



■■ Include publicly accessible practice spaces 
for the Strathmore, music, art and dance 
community; 



■■ Improve and enhance connections to the 
neighborhood, metro and open space; 



■■ Promote Smart Growth and sustainability with 
multi-modal mobility options; 



■■ Protect surrounding open and green space. 



■■ Create significant affordable housing 
inventory.
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CONNECTIVITY
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CONNECTIVITY - EXISTING
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CONNECTIVITY - PRECEDENTS
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PLACE-MAKING
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PLACE-MAKING - EXISTING
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PLACE-MAKING - PRECEDENTS
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SUSTAINABILITY
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SUSTAINABILITY – EXISTING
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SUSTAINABILITY – PROPOSED
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ARCHITECTURE 
& DESIGN
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ARCHITECTURE AND DESIGN CHARACTER – EXISTING











53



ARCHITECTURE AND DESIGN CHARACTER – PRECEDENTS
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COMMUNITY 
OUTREACH
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH



SEQUENCE OF EVENTS 



■■ Selected as joint development partner by WMATA
■■ Immediately reached out to Strathmore
■■ MNCPPC Master Plan Kick-off Meeting July 7, 2016
■■ Studied / examined community input
■■ Developed initial concept
■■ Further community input – sponsored Planning 



Workshop
■■ Refined concept
■■ Community Surveys – input on aspects of plan
■■ Retail Pop Up pilot – Integral to our vision
■■ MNCPPC Staff Report – Alternative concept with 



thoughtful details
■■ Our Current Concept & Vision
■■ MMPA plan changes needed to achieve our vision
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH MEETINGS



Symphony Park HOA Leadership



Grosvenor Park II Residents



Meeting w/ Friends of White Flint's Amy Ginsburg



Parkside/Stoneybrook/Strathmore Park HOA Leadership



Amy Ginsburg Living Room Meeting



The Crest resident



Happy Hour - Meridian



Happy Hour - Avalon at Grosvenor



Town Hall Meeting at Gables on Tuckerman



Planning Staff Community Meeting



Pop-up Grand Opening



Park and Planning Working Draft to Planning Board



Small Meetings with Interested Neighbors



Park & Planning MMPA Community Meeting



WJ Cluster Coordinators



Parkside Condo Association



Stoneybrook HOA



Strathmore Park HOA



Action Committee for Transit 



Strathmore Square Community Workshop



Friends of White Flint



North Bethesda Transportation Management District



BCC Chamber Land Use Committee



The Meridian Happy Hour 



Park & Planning MMPA Community Meeting



Parkside Resident



Western Montgomery Citizens Advisory Board Land Use 
Committee 



Launch of on-line survey regarding project
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH



30 Community Outreach Meetings



750 Phone calls to community members



4500+ Surveys for Community Input



30 Community Outreach Meetings



750 Phone calls to community members



4500+ Surveys for Community Input



30 Community Outreach Meetings



750 Phone calls to community members



4500+ Surveys for Community Input
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COMMUNITY SURVEY QUESTION & RESULTS



QUESTION#1: 
What kinds of activities would you like to see on a Village Green?



Answer Choices Responses



Music concerts & live performances 76.99% 338



Outdoor Movie Nights 67.20% 295



Yoga and Tai Chi 41.00% 180



Play Areas 38.94% 167



Neighborhood Picnics 36.22% 159



Other (please specify) 12.3% 54
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COMMUNITY SURVEY QUESTION & RESULTS



QUESTION#2: 
What kinds of pop-ups would you like to see at Strathmore Square?



Answer Choices Responses



Famers’ market 79.31% 345



Small Café 77.70% 338



Bakery 64.60% 281



Ice Cream Shop 56.32% 245



Other (please specify) 20.69% 90
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COMMUNITY SURVEY QUESTION & RESULTS



QUESTION#3: 
What additional features would you like to see at Strathmore Square?  



Answer Choices Responses



Benches 85.71% 366



Local art/sculpture 63.93% 273



Bike racks 49.41% 211



Chess tables 28.10% 120



Other (please specify) 17.10% 73
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COMMUNITY SURVEY QUESTION & RESULTS



QUESTION#4: 
What other community amenities would you like to see?



Answer Choices Responses



Small branch of public library 60.85% 230



Exercise facility 54.23% 205



Meeting space 35.98% 136



Day care 17.46% 66



Other (please specify) 15.34% 58
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PLACE-MAKING – THE POP UPS AT  
GROSVENOR METRO STATION



GROSVENOR METRO 
STATION ENTRANCE
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PLACE-MAKING – THE POP UPS AT 
GROSVENOR METRO STATION











66



INITIAL FIVESQUARES CONCEPT PLAN
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M-NCPPC CONCEPT PLAN
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REVISED FIVESQUARES CONCEPT PLAN
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REVISED FIVESQUARES CONCEPT PLAN



■■ Support Master Plan concept.



■■ Remove building (Parcel 5) from plan to allow for more light and air at Civic Square



■■ Removed loop road to allow for more area for green area 



■■ Reorient Civic Square towards Metro station entrance creating a better concept plan



■■ Pavilion/Retail at West end of Civic Square
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COMMENTS ON  
THE MMPA



1   FAR 
2   Towers and Locations
3   Compatibility on Tuckerman     
4   Open Space
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Issue 1: FAR and Development Targets
M-NCPPC PROPOSAL



Recommendations within 
this Plan are based 
on moderate-density 
scenario of 2.5 FAR
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PROPOSAL:  
■■ Revise plan to a 3.0 FAR



RATIONALE: 



■■ Consistent with Smart Growth policies 



■■ Right at Metro site and is one of last large 
sites along the WMATA Red Line 



■■ Supports heavy cost of infrastructure



■■ Based on a 20-30 year plan



■■ Consistent with nearby densities at 	
Metro stations



■■ Increase afforadable housing inventory 



■■ Transportation network will support the 



increase in density (see Wells + Associates 



analysis in the Appendix) 



Issue 1: FAR and Development Targets
FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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M-NCPPC PROPOSAL:  
■■ Two signature building zones
■■ Maximum two signature buildings



Issue 2: Tower and Locations
M-NCPPC PROPOSAL
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220’



260’



260’



260’



Issue 2: Tower and Locations



PROPOSAL:  
■■ Three Signature Building Sites as shown
■■ 220’ building at NE corner of Tuckerman Lane



RATIONALE:  
■■ Height can be accommodated without 



additional impact to surrounding community
■■ 20-30 year plan
■■ Flexibility to achieve better distinction 



of height



FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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Issue 3: Compatibility on Tuckerman
M-NCPPC PROPOSAL



M-NCPPC PROPOSAL:  
■■ Limit height to 85’ in transition zone
■■ Set back 40’ additional feet from Tuckerman 



before 45 degree angular plane begins
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Issue 3: Compatibility on Tuckerman
FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL



PROPOSAL:  
■■ Increase maximum height from 85’ to 120’ in Zone to 



allow for more flexibility in site planning process.
■■ Buildings in Zone fronting Tuckerman are 4 stories.
■■ Begin 45 degree angular plane at property line will 



improve impact to Strathmore Park.
■■ Extension of Zone to North should match offset of 



Strathmore Park buildings to Meridian tower to South of 
Zone. 



RATIONALE:  
■■ As defined, there is too much specificity in the “Transition 



Zone” parameters for a minor master plan. Determining 
location of angular plane and height limit would be 
much better addressed in the county site planning 
process. Flexibility in achieving density will lead to better 
architectural solutions for all.



■■ Zone extends beyond buildings confronting the site to 
the North in an inconsistent manner to relationships with 
existing buildings to South. Offsets should be the same. 



■■ The location of the angular plane exceeds guidance 
of existing regulations (article 59-4) protecting single 
family residences and leads to impression of larger 
building mass by restricting building profile as seen from 
Tuckerman Lane. 



■■ Height allowed restricts contextual response to Meridian 
and proposed towers and provides fewer solutions to 
architectural response in the zone.
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Issue 3: Compatibility on Tuckerman
FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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Issue 3: Compatibility on Tuckerman



■■ Transition zone extends further north than 
is necessary to protect confronting buildings 
across Tuckerman Lane (Strathmore Park) 



■■ Transition zone to the North should be 
consistent with the relationship to the 
Meridian Tower to the south 



■■ Current extent of Zone has large adverse 
impact on Parcel 2



FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL



S



N



View looking South on Tuckerman towards existing 
Meridian tower.
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Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations
M-NCPPC PROPOSAL



Develope a central Civic 
Green Urban Park of 
minimum 1.25 acres at 
the Metro site.



Encourage creation of 
a public open space or 
pocket park of 0.25 acres 
along Tuckerman Lane.
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Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations
FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL



BUILDING CONSTRICTION IMPACTING 
WIDTH OF CIVIC SQUARE 
 



■■ Why 1 acre not 1.25?
■■ Committed to 10%+ open area
■■ Recognize existing open space that will 



remain.
■■ Minimum 1 acre Civic Square at center  



of plan.
■■ Need 25’ clearance from garage for WMATA 



maintenance access.
■■ Need 110’ + 30’ residential liner for efficient 



parking of buildings around square without 
exposing parking.



■■ Dimensional requirements and clearances for 
efficient building footprints drive maximum 
140’ width for Square and limit size to 1 acre.
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Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations



PROPOSAL: Modify 1.25 Acres Civic 
Square to 1.0 Acre  



■■ 1.0 acre Civic Square
■■ Create 2.0 acres cumulative Open Space
■■ Exceeds 10% of site area (1.46 acres). 



RATIONALE: 
■■ To accommodate WMATA clearances for 



Parking Garage 



■■ Large area of site already taken up by  
WMATA operations 



■■ To Allow for residential units to front Civic 
Square instead of parking 



■■ Dimensional requirements and clearances 
for efficient building footprints drive 
maximum 140’ width for Square and limit 
size to 1 acre. 



■■ Unusual green site with 100 acres of 
protected green parks and open space in 
easy walking distance. 



FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations



LOCAL PRECEDENT: Rockville Town Center | 26,500 gsf



FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations



LOCAL PRECEDENT: North Bethesda Market | 17,500 gsf



FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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LOCAL PRECEDENT: White Flint | 33,500 gsf



Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations
FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations



LOCAL PRECEDENT: Reston Town Center | 54,000 gsf | 11-23 story towers, 4 story mid rise residential/mixed use buildings



FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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PRECEDENT: Webster Park, Chicago | 42,000 gsf (280’ x 150’) | 4 Story row houses, 22-27 story towers



Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations
FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
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FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations



LOCAL PRECEDENT: Pike and Rose, Rockville, MD | 21,000 gsf (1/2 acre) | 10 to 20 story towers and mixed use buildings  
				    1,648,936 sf development in phase 2
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FIVESQUARES PROPOSAL
Issue 4: Open Space Recommendations



THE GREEN “BELT”

















APPENDIX
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MOBILITY – TRANSPORTATION ANALYSIS 
■■ In November 2016, the Montgomery County Council adopted 



the 2016-2020 Subdivision Staging Policy (SSP). Grosvenor-
Strathmore Metro station is located in a Metro Station Policy 
area, and per the SSP “is characterized by high-density 
development and the availability of premium transit service.” 



■■ MNCPPC HCM traffic analysis studied up to 2.5 FAR at four key 
intersection near the Grosvner-Strathmore Metro site 



■■ Wells + Associates used MNCPPC methodology and 
assumptions and completed additional analysis to include 
3.0 FAR with a proposed operational improvement at 355/
Tuckerman Lane (North) intersection (See Exhibit). 



■■ The Wells + Associates analysis demonstrates the 
intersection and network can support a 3.0 FAR. 



■■ Additionally, the HCM capacity analysis contains an assumption 
that ALL future master planned developments are fully built 
including White Flint, Rock Spring, Twinbrook, and others 
and does not take into account future improvements in 
transportation modes such as planned BRT.



APPENDIX 
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APPENDIX 
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Table A
HCM Analysis Results (MNCPPC Forecasts ‐ Redistribution Alternative)



Delay (Sec) LOS Delay (Sec) LOS Delay (Sec) LOS Delay (Sec) LOS



with optimization (1)  73.4 D 43.0 * C 33.9 C 35.0 C
with optimization (2) ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 40.7 C 41.1 C



with optimization (1)  51.7 C 86.7 * E 89.6 E 101.8 E
 Lane Use and Op. Imp. (2) ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 68.3 D 72.4 D



with optimization (1)  8.4 A 10.6 A 18.2 B 19.4 B
with optimization (2) ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 17.7 B 19.0 B



with optimization (1)  79.2 D 45.0 * C 30.8 C 31.1 C
with optimization (2) ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 31.5 C 31.8 C



Delay (Sec) LOS Delay (Sec) LOS Delay (Sec) LOS Delay (Sec) LOS



with optimization (1)  76.9 D 69.1 * D 69.3 D 73.4 D
with optimization (2) ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 68.1 D 68.3 D



with optimization (1)  96.7 E 94.7 * E 91.0 E 95.0 E
 Lane Use and Op. Imp. (2) ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 84.6 E 90.1 E



with optimization (1)  10.5 A 6.3 A 13.9 A 14.9 A
with optimization (2) ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 13.7 A 15.0 A



with optimization (1)  57.3 D 32.1 * C 28.3 B 29.4 B
with optimization (2) ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 29.4 B 29.9 B



Notes:



1 Existing results shown are as calcuated by MNCPPC.  Improvement Includes Signal Optimization.       LOS
2 Improvement includes Optimization and Lane Use Changes as presented by W+A.    A 0.0 15.0
^ Includes NADMS (mode shift) of 10% (post processing from 41% to 45% by ACS data and Travel/4).   B 15.1 30.0
* Analysis includes Synchro coding adjustments.   C 30.1 52.5



D 52.6 82.5
E 82.6 120.0
F 120.1



3
MD 355 &                              
Tuckerman Lane (South)



Policy Area Equivalent Threshold (120 seconds)
Int # Location AM



2016 Existing 2040 No Build 2040 FAR 2.5 ^ 2040 FAR 3.0 ^



1
MD 355 &        Strathmore 
Ave 



2
MD 355 &         Tuckerman 
Lane (North) 



4
MD 355 &                              
Grosvenor Lane



Int # Location PM 2040 No Build 2040 FAR 2.5 2040 FAR 3.0



1
MD 355 &        Strathmore 
Ave 



2016 Existing



LOS RANGE



2
MD 355 &         Tuckerman 
Lane (North) 



3
MD 355 &                              
Tuckerman Lane (South)



4
MD 355 &                              
Grosvenor Lane



6/27/2017
17.0627 Grosvenor‐Strathmore Capacity Analysis Summary



Wells + Associates, Inc.
Tysons, VA
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APPENDIX 



MOBILITY – BIKE & PED CONNECTIVITY  
MNCPPC Goal: Improve pedestrian connections to allow 
people to walk safely and comfortably between destinations 
(MMPA page 50): 



Fivesquares Comments: 



■■ Strongly support this recommendation. 











Washington Metropolitan  
Area Transit Authority











CRM  FW: Strathmore Square development

		From

		MCP-Chair

		To

		Krasnow, Rose

		Recipients

		rose.krasnow@montgomeryplanning.org



 



 



From: Maya Sohn [mailto:ujuinmaya@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 4:45 PM
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Cc: Hill, Maren <maren.hill@montgomeryplanning.org>; Wright, Gwen <gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org>; Afzal, Khalid <khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org>
Subject: Strathmore Square development



 



Dear Chairman Anderson and members of the planning board,



 



I have had a great time seeing and visiting the retail pop-ups at the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Station. The current station and surrounding area has no life and the pop-ups have brought a new life to the area. 



 



I very much look forward to having a place to hang out with old friends



​ and neighbors​



, meet new friends, and perhaps have dinner before catching a performance at Strathmore-all within walking distance. I like the sense of place that the plans for Strathmore Square will create. If allowed the necessary density, Strathmore Square will add a vibrancy that we haven’t seen before while providing retail amenities that I, and many others, wish to see. 



 



Strathmore Square can bring new life to a stale Metro station that currently only serves to park cars. I’d like to see the Fivesquares plan be favorably considered by the planning board and help bring new life to our community.


Sincerely, 



 



Maya Sohn



ujuinmaya@gmail.com 



​ 
5801 Nicholson Ln #933
North Bethesda, MD 20852



​Mobile: 202-815-6951



 






CRM  FW: Support for Fivesquares Develepment's plans for the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro station.

		From

		MCP-Chair

		To

		Krasnow, Rose

		Recipients

		rose.krasnow@montgomeryplanning.org



 



 



From: Jhin Han [mailto:jhin.han@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 4:35 PM
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Cc: ◦maren.hill@montgomeryplanning.org; ◦gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org; ◦khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org
Subject: Support for Fivesquares Develepment's plans for the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro station.



 



Dear Mr. Anderson,



 



My name is Peter Han, and I am a resident in Montgomery County (10505 Prairie Landing Ter. North Potomac, MD 20878).



 



I fully support Fivesquares Development’s plans for the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro station, but I believe that the community would benefit more if a greater density than currently recommended by the Planning Board staff is approved.



 



I use Metro everyday and I believe what Fivesquares has created at the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro station is a great start in rejuvenating the neighborhood through commuters. I must admit, I don’t usually get off at the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro station, as I usually park at the Shady Grove Metro station.  However, due to the Safetrack surge last week, I had a good fortune to park at the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro station and pleasantly surprised by the vibrant atmosphere at the station.  When I came up the escalator, I immediately smiled at the smell of baked goods. I am a big supporter of having local retailers at the pop-ups. I am looking forward to having permanent local retailers at Strathmore Square. 



 



Strathmore Square will be a great amenity for the community. Residents and Metro riders will have the option of enjoying a nice dinner or a performance by local artists or Strathmore students. Overall, I am very pleased with Fivesquares Development’s plans for the area. 



 



I hope you support Strathmore Square and allow greater density for this area.  



 



Thank you,



 



Peter Han






CRM:  FW: Strathmore Square

		From

		MCP-Chair

		To

		Krasnow, Rose

		Recipients

		rose.krasnow@montgomeryplanning.org



 



 



From: Amy Stamm [mailto:amycstamm@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 4:19 PM
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Cc: Hill, Maren <maren.hill@montgomeryplanning.org>; Wright, Gwen <gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org>; Afzal, Khalid <khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org>
Subject: Strathmore Square



 



Good afternoon Mr. Anderson, 



 



I’m a Strathmore area resident and I 100% support Fivesquares Development’s proposal for Strathmore Square. 



 



As a daily Metro commuter for my job in D.C., I appreciate the existing arts walk and additional connectivity enhancements that Strathmore Square will bring. 



 



Also, as you may know, there are almost no shops or restaurants within walking distance of Strathmore. Strathmore Square remedies that problem with space for local vendors to set up shop right in the heart of the planned community. Having these options within walking distance from my home will be much nicer than being resigned to always having to get in the car or on the Metro just for a sandwich or ice cream cone. 



 



This proposal is contingent on the Planning Board approving an increased level of density, and I fully support this goal. I love living in this area, and more density is an absolute “must-have” to ensure that the amenities above will succeed.  



 



I hope that you will take these factors into consideration and approve greater density than what is included in the staff recommendation. 



 



Thanks so much, 



 



Sincerely, 



 



Amy Stamm



5204 Tuckerman Ln Apt 203



North Bethesda, MD 20852



240-723-2745



 



 







From: Afzal, Khalid
To: Sturgeon, Nancy; Hill, Maren; Sharma, Atul
Subject: FW: CRM: Grosvenor Strathmore
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 2:16:21 PM
Attachments: CRM - FW Grosvenor-Strathmore Minor Master Plan.msg

CRM - FW Support of Strathmore Square.msg
CRM - FW Strathmore Square.msg
CRM - FW Five Squares Development.msg

 
 
Khalid Afzal
Acting Chief, Area 2 Division
Montgomery County Planning Department
8787 Georgia Avenue
Silver Spring, MD 20910
301-495-4650
Khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org

 

From: Krasnow, Rose 
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 10:35 AM
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
 
More letters in support than against!
Please note that in the last email I sent, FiveSquares included a 96 page booklet outlining their
response the Master Plan.  I wanted to call that out prior to Thursday.
Rose

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

CRM - FW: Grosvenor-Strathmore Minor Master Plan

		From

		MCP-Chair

		To

		Krasnow, Rose

		Recipients

		rose.krasnow@montgomeryplanning.org



 



 



From: ellen lubetzky [mailto:ellenlub7@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 2:18 AM
To: Hill, Maren <maren.hill@montgomeryplanning.org>; MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Subject: Grosvenor-Strathmore Minor Master Plan



 



Dear Mr. Anderson, fellow Board members, and planners:



 



I reside at 10404 Strathmore Park Condominium, across the street from the planned development site.  I am writing to join my neighbors in their strong objections to the proposal to amend the master plan for the tract of land at the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro stop on the east side of Rockville Pike.  



 



Although the May 11th plan amendment is comprehensive, it fails to take into account a number of factors.  



 



The density used as the basis for calculating the impact of this development is limited by the theoretical assumptions used. The plan refers only to maximum square footage to be applied to residential use.  A FAR 2.5 standard would yield approximately 1,150 units. It is likely that more than half of the development will consist of studios and one bedroom units. These typically measure between 400 to 600 sqft. Doing the math would yield more than 1,500 residences (the number to be left to the discretion of the developer). 



 



This area has very few amenities within walking distance. Public transportation (except during rush hours) is limited and the time period between buses and trains is 20 minutes or more. Bus routes can be cut for economic reasons as witness the recent elimination of the J5 bus. New residents will probably rely wholly on their own or rented cars to access grocery stories, medical services, restaurants, banks, shops, and entertainment venues.  Bicycles would not prove to be a safe alternative since they would be competing with pedestrians and cars for limited road width.The proposed narrowing of "parking lanes " to allow the addition of a bicycle path will leave riders exposed to careless drivers of which there are many. 



 



Tuckerman Lane is already congested at rush hours and when Strathmore has an event. Parents use the street to bring their children to music classes and to school buses.  Tuckerman “Loop" constraints have been glossed over   Right now the Loop is a "choke point without alternatives, which must serve residents, service providers, visitors, metro users, culture seekers, walkers,runners  bikers, animals school children at Holy Cross, Strathmore, Adding 1,150 - 1,500 dwelling units to the Loop (we currently have close to 1,950), has the potential to raise the neighborhood vibe to a level of frenetic, albeit an angry gridlock kind of frenetic. The noise level is already high particularly from the shuttle bus.



 



The topography of the parcel is such that construction of any high-rise towers would overwhelm the site and adjoining areas, specially as the towers would be located on the heights of the parcel. There is nothing comparable in the immediate neighborhood to justify approving such structures. 



 



The promises of green spaces and connectivity to parks and trails is somewhat misleading given the size of the parcel and the existing infrastracture. The reference to gathering places and athletic usage will mostly benefit residents of the development and therefore will not ameliorate the life style of the existing neighborhoods which will need to live with increased noise, and congestion without increased amenities. 



 



In closing, I would like to express my surprise that the Planning Board is taking such a segmented approach to development rather than considering the total effect of the planned development in the district including White Flint Twinbrook metro and Pooks Hill. 



 



 



I join the requests of my neighbors that the Planning Board lower the building heights significantly below those that were recommended for the site and adhere to the original 545 unit goal.



 



 



Thank you for your consideration.



 



Sincerely,



 



Ellen Lubetzky






CRM - FW: Support of Strathmore Square

		From

		MCP-Chair

		To

		Krasnow, Rose

		Recipients

		rose.krasnow@montgomeryplanning.org



 



 



From: Roberto Matus [mailto:robertomatus@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 12:05 AM
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Cc: Hill, Maren <maren.hill@montgomeryplanning.org>; Wright, Gwen <gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org>; Afzal, Khalid <khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org>
Subject: Support of Strathmore Square



 



Dear Chairman Anderson,



I’d like to add my support for the Strathmore Square development project at the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Station as proposed by FiveSquares Development.



I’ve enjoyed everything about the retail pop-up that’s been at the station for the last several weeks.  Now, as the proposal for the full development moves forward, I hope to see more of the same.  The future plans for Strathmore Square offer retail amenities that our community desperately wants, green space for friends to gather and kids to play, a deeper connection to Strathmore, and transit oriented development that is much needed in Montgomery County.  



In addition, including a higher density of residential options is in line with the smart growth practices that Montgomery County is striving for.  Any effort to develop at transit facilities that can help get cars off the roads should be supported.



Thank you for favorably considering the FiveSquares plan.



Sincerely,



Roberto Matus, Jr.



293 shadow glen court 



Gaithersburg MD 20878






CRM - FW: Strathmore Square

		From

		MCP-Chair

		To

		Krasnow, Rose

		Recipients

		rose.krasnow@montgomeryplanning.org



 



 



From: Matthew Taylor [mailto:mdtay11@netzero.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 8:38 PM
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org>
Cc: Hill, Maren <maren.hill@montgomeryplanning.org>; Wright, Gwen <gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org>; Afzal, Khalid <khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org>
Subject: Strathmore Square



 



Dear Montgomery County Planning Board,



 



I am writing in reference to the Grosvenor-Strathmore minor master plan amendment, Strathmore Square and the plan to build transit-oriented residences at or near the Metro station.  This is a unique opportunity to enhance the community around the Grosvenor Metro.  I respectfully encourage you to support high-density building to be in line with the County’s vision for smart growth. 



 



I like the idea that Strathmore Square will be a mix of residences, green space, art connections and small retail to serve people who live close by.  I have been riding Metro's Red Line for two decades, so I know that right now there is very little that anyone can walk or bike to from the Grosvenor Station, with the exception of the Strathmore Music Hall. As long as Metro uses the Grosvenor-Strathmore Station as a terminus for every other train, it just begs for there to be more there than a multi-story parking garage.   



 



Please vote to support higher density building at the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro so we can make the most of this great opportunity for an excellent transit-oriented development. 



 



Sincerely, 



 



Matthew Taylor



520 Beall Ave.



Rockville, MD  20850






CRM - FW: Five Squares Development

		From

		MCP-Chair

		To

		Krasnow, Rose

		Recipients

		rose.krasnow@montgomeryplanning.org



 



 



From: Mark McDonough [mailto:mark.mcdonough@rcn.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 5:52 PM
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



 



I support Fivesquares Development’s plans for the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro station. I am a daily Red Line commuter and I live about two miles away from the station. Having the pop-ups at the station has been a delight. Small local retail is just what this area needs and I am happy to see that Fivesquares made that happen by adding Metro railcar kiosks. 



 



I am looking forward to using the Village Green as well. I think it’s a great idea and a perfect place to host outdoor concerts. Their plans for greater density will allow residents to live, work and play all in the same area.



 



This station is the proper place for greater density. The density recommendation given by the Planning Board staff is not enough to make this area achieve its fullest potential. As a daily commuter and nearby resident, I ask that you support greater density and allow this exciting new transit-oriented development project come to life.



 



Sincerely, 



 



Mark McDonough



9317 Linden Ave



Bethesda, MD 



301-530-6852



 







From: ellen lubetzky
To: Hill, Maren; MCP-Chair
Subject: Grosvenor-Strathmore Minor Master Plan
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 2:17:57 AM

Dear Mr. Anderson, fellow Board members, and planners:

I reside at 10404 Strathmore Park Condominium, across the street from the planned development site.  I am writing
to join my neighbors in their strong objections to the proposal to amend the master plan for the tract of land at the
Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro stop on the east side of Rockville Pike.  

Although the May 11th plan amendment is comprehensive, it fails to take into account a number of factors.  

The density used as the basis for calculating the impact of this development is limited by the theoretical
assumptions used. The plan refers only to maximum square footage to be applied to residential use.  A FAR 2.5
standard would yield approximately 1,150 units. It is likely that more than half of the development will consist of
studios and one bedroom units. These typically measure between 400 to 600 sqft. Doing the math would yield more
than 1,500 residences (the number to be left to the discretion of the developer). 

This area has very few amenities within walking distance. Public transportation (except during rush hours) is
limited and the time period between buses and trains is 20 minutes or more. Bus routes can be cut for economic
reasons as witness the recent elimination of the J5 bus. New residents will probably rely wholly on their own or
rented cars to access grocery stories, medical services, restaurants, banks, shops, and entertainment venues. 
Bicycles would not prove to be a safe alternative since they would be competing with pedestrians and cars for
limited road width.The proposed narrowing of "parking lanes " to allow the addition of a bicycle path will leave
riders exposed to careless drivers of which there are many. 

Tuckerman Lane is already congested at rush hours and when Strathmore has an event. Parents use the street to
bring their children to music classes and to school buses.  Tuckerman “Loop" constraints have been glossed over  
Right now the Loop is a "choke point without alternatives, which must serve residents, service providers, visitors,
metro users, culture seekers, walkers,runners  bikers, animals school children at Holy Cross, Strathmore, Adding
1,150 - 1,500 dwelling units to the Loop (we currently have close to 1,950), has the potential to raise the
neighborhood vibe to a level of frenetic, albeit an angry gridlock kind of frenetic. The noise level is already high
particularly from the shuttle bus.

The topography of the parcel is such that construction of any high-rise towers would overwhelm the site and
adjoining areas, specially as the towers would be located on the heights of the parcel. There is nothing comparable
in the immediate neighborhood to justify approving such structures. 

The promises of green spaces and connectivity to parks and trails is somewhat misleading given the size of the
parcel and the existing infrastracture. The reference to gathering places and athletic usage will mostly benefit
residents of the development and therefore will not ameliorate the life style of the existing neighborhoods which
will need to live with increased noise, and congestion without increased amenities. 

In closing, I would like to express my surprise that the Planning Board is taking such a segmented approach to
development rather than considering the total effect of the planned development in the district including White
Flint Twinbrook metro and Pooks Hill. 

I join the requests of my neighbors that the Planning Board lower the building heights significantly below
those that were recommended for the site and adhere to the original 545 unit goal.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Ellen Lubetzky

mailto:Maren.Hill@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org
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Hill, Maren

From: Afzal, Khalid
Sent: Monday, July 03, 2017 8:45 AM
To: Sturgeon, Nancy; Hill, Maren; Sharma, Atul
Subject: FW: CRM - FW: Comment on Five Squares Strathmore proposal

 
 
Khalid Afzal 
Acting Chief, Area 2 Division 
Montgomery County Planning Department 
8787 Georgia Avenue, Silver Spring MD 20910 
301‐495‐4650 
Khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Krasnow, Rose  
Sent: Friday, June 30, 2017 9:27 AM 
To: Afzal, Khalid <khalid.afzal@montgomeryplanning.org>; Adams, Holly <holly.adams@montgomeryplanning.org> 
Cc: Wright, Gwen <gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org>; Pugh, Carolyn <carolyn.pugh@montgomeryplanning.org> 
Subject: CRM ‐ FW: Comment on Five Squares Strathmore proposal 
 
A letter from someone who listened  last night and felt that Parkside wasn't adequately represented. 
Rose 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Edward Fischman [mailto:fischman.edward@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2017 9:03 PM 
To: MCP‐Chair <mcp‐chair@mncppc‐mc.org> 
Subject: Comment on Five Squares Strathmore proposal 
 
To the Planning Board, 
 
I am a long time resident of Parkside — celebrating 20 years next month. I believe I have some important insights from 
the perspective of a community that wasn’t adequately represented at the Board meeting tonight. There were 
numerous residents from Strathmore Park, who frankly are most worried about their views and the changing character 
of the neighborhood, and the residents of Symphony Square, who would love to see more local amenities, but will not 
be impacted in the same way as those who rely on Tuckerman Lane. You heard from one Parkside resident who had 
concerns about the changing neighborhood, and another who welcomed the development because of the density and 
promised attention to the local flora and fauna.  
 
I wish to align myself more with the latter sentiment, but wish to amplify with some concerns I have. Parkside is a 
peculiarly situated development, on the edge of Rock Creek Park, and near the Metro, as well as neighboring Garret 
Park, but in some important ways isolated or even cut off from all of that.  There are no trails into the Park from 
Parkside, so bike riders or walkers must go out to Tuckerman, then along Rockville Pike, and then down onto Beach 
Drive. In my current place I park a few yards from the Garrett Park neighborhood, but I cannot drive into it and proceed 
directly into Kensington, or instead west to the Pike. Rather, I must drive through the music of the Parkside 
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neighborhood, nearly a mile, before getting to Tuckerman Lane. And, I must drive almost anywhere, except when I’m 
taking the Metro into the city, though even then, I drive to a find a street parking spot perhaps 3/4 of a mile closer  to 
the Metro, because I’m at the far end of the neighborhood — and then I walk, most of it uphill, both ways. Living in 
Parkside there are no amenities in easy walking distance. Even the Grosvenor Market requires driving. And every drive 
means having to exit Montrose Ave.and on to Tuckerman Lane. 
 
With the developments that have arisen since I’ve been here — including Strathmore Park and Meridian — there have 
been huge changes. For example the deer that used to pass through Parkside to all the greenery along the Metro now 
stay in Parkside to graze because that greenery no longer exists at the Metro. They are a regular road hazard and it 
amazes me that no one has hit one — but I enjoy seeing them outside my door. But, perhaps, there should be some 
effort to provide them a estimation in the wooded areas behind Parkside, with adequate food there. Perhaps the 
developers could commit to that, along with the excellent ideas to create a better trail access connecting the Metro 
property to the park, running through Parkside. That would help Parkside residents to access the Metro on foot, as well 
as improving our access to the park.  
 
There should be considerable efforts to make the Strathmore Square development more accessible to Parkside 
residents. Better pedestrian connections would be welcome. But many Parkside residents will have a long walk to the 
site. I would suggest that the bus service be enhanced operating as free shuttle to the Metro site. That would encourage 
more residents to use it, even to shop at whatever shops are established there. This also brings me to the next point. I 
heard testimony that there won’t be many such amenities. Frankly, it’s important to get a real supermarket there, even 
if it might compete with Grosvenor Market and the Meridian Market (which is really just a liquor store). That would limit 
the need to drive every time I need groceries.  
 
I welcome the new development — and I encourage the Board to be more ambitious. Increase the density, but increase 
the affordable housing requirements, and the work force requirements. This can be a model development like a Reston 
or Columbia that seeks to bring together a more diverse community than exists in much of the County, where people are 
segregated by ethnicity or income, or both. More residents qualifying for affordable housing are also more limey to shop 
at a local market, so long as it isn’t as pricey as Whole Foods or Fresh Market.   
 
However, it’s important to note that Parkside residents are already adversely impacted the current development. We 
have only the one egress and ingress. Egress can be pretty challenging, especially if on wants to make a left turn. I might 
urge the Board to work with MCDOT to make that a four‐way stop. Parkside residents headed south along Tuckerman, 
we invariably have to tsp to make a left turn into the community as we wait for ongoing traffic to clear. And we can have 
a long wait to make a left turn off Montrose on to Tuckerman because of thru traffic that doesn’t have to stop. If this 
development goes forward, greater consideration has to be given to Parkside residents. If we’re forced to make right 
turns because left turns become impossible at most times, we will be thrown into all the traffic heading into the Metro 
or to Strathmore. When there are events, that can be backed up through more than one light cycle. this will only get 
worse, so Parkside residents should be encouraged to go left towards the Pike. That can be hard to do.  
 
And, imagine a time when Parkside is redeveloped. Whatever decisions are made now should not made in a way that 
will preclude ways to give residents there reasonable ingress and egress.  
 
Thank you for reading what I have to say. Please enter this into the record.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Edward Fischman 
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Hill, Maren

To: Afzal, Khalid; Sturgeon, Nancy; Sharma, Atul
Subject: RE: CRM - FW: Comment on Five Squares Strathmore proposal

 
 
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

To: Afzal, Khalid
Subject: RE: CRM - FW: Strathmore Square 

 
  
I’m so pleased to learn about the plans for Strathmore Square.  I am writing to lend my full support for the project. 
However, I would like to see the density increased to maximize the potential of this development for start‐up businesses 
and small, local vendors. 
  
I own Millie’s International Creations, which is one of the pop‐up vendors at Strathmore Square.  I started my business 
one year ago, and I sell one‐of‐a‐kind hand‐made jewelry, clothing, and other accessories that either I have made myself 
or that were made by women in developing countries.  My goal is to work with these women to help them sustain 
themselves.  What a great way to help these women – to offer a mainstream market where their goods can be sold! 
  
I also love the idea of a public square and a village green accompanied by cultural arts and recreation.  This gives the 
area a residential look, an attractive atmosphere, as well as offering something for almost everyone.   
  
With so much to offer so many people, it is a “must‐have.”  Please support the developmental plan and please vote to 
increase the density so as to support the local small vendors and start‐ups. 
 
Penny Clarke, Owner  
Millie's International Creations  
13513 Redspire Drive  
Silver Spring, MD 20906 
 
Sent from my iPhone 6 
301‐332‐8295 
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Hill, Maren

To: Afzal, Khalid; Sturgeon, Nancy; Sharma, Atul
Subject: RE:  FW: Item 9  Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan Amendment

 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Richard Hoye [mailto:richardhoye@me.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 5:12 PM 
To: MCP-Chair <mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org> 
Subject: Item 9 Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan Amendment 
 
Dear Chairman Anderson and fellow Commissioners, 
 
I write in support of the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Master Plan Amendment and in particular, the plans 
for Strathmore Square.   
 
In 1992 I participated in the Master Plan process and supported the plans for Potomac Investment Properties 
plans for the southern part of the Metro parking area.  Today we have an opportunity to bring a greater sense of 
energy and vitality to the Metro site by maximizing density in a mixed use form on this site. As so precious few 
areas of our county are served by a Metro station we owe all our residents a visionary and bold plan to create a 
vibrant lace for community building through densities using an FAR of at least 3.5.  Density is not a dirty word 
to me or to members of our younger generations who will inherit the places we make today.   
 
Tukerman Lane can provide a better pedestrian feel and sense of place for neighbors and drivers by allowing for 
a minimal set back of building facades and heights.  The plan should allow for this appeal.  Today Turckerman 
Lane is too much of a suburban freeway. 
 
The plans for this area should maximize that physical and virtual "grid" of streets and pathways as creatively as 
possible for the convenience of the public and to reduce car trips.  I ask that an elevated pathway be constructed 
over the existing wood chip path between the Montrose neighborhood and the Metro site. also, a first class bike 
path should connect to the Rock Creek Trail for the benefit of the entire community.  I ask that a "Bike Station" 
is added to the plan.  This facility is similar to the Bike Station at Union Station Metro stop.  A bus pull off and 
pathway connection to the existing tunnel under Rockville Pike on the west side should be evaluated and 
included in the plan.  This feature would enhance bus access to the Metro station and developments there while 
reducing bus head ways and decreasing congestion at the Tuckerman Lane intersection. 
 
As a retired County employee and during my career in the Fire Service I have needed to rent spare rooms in my 
house to afford to live in the County I call home.  And my renters needed the affordability of a shared house, 
too.  I'm proud of my lifestyle decision yet painfully aware at how difficult it is to afford housing in this 
county.  We owe it to present and future residents of Montgomery County to maximize housing and the mixed 
use resources that make a car-free or car-lite lifestyle a pleasant reality through greater density than specified in 
this plan. 
 
I thank you for your time and attention. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Richard E. Hoye 
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101 Lucas Lane 
Bethesda, MD 20814 



Dear M. Afzal, 
 
I am writing you to express my support for the Strathmore Square plans.  I think it is a wonderful 
opportunity for commuters and neighbors alike, and I would like to see more density added so more 
people can take advantage of this.  
 
One thing that I would like to see is greater accommodations for motorcycle parking.  Motorcycles use 
less fuel, take up less space on the road and produce lower emissions than conventional cars.    
 
Please vote to support this plan and also to increase the density of the project so we can get more cars 
off of the road. 
 
Sincerely, 
Jim Parker 
 



10421 Montrose Avenue 

Bethesda, Maryland  20814 

301-493-5641 

 

 

June 27, 2017 

 

 

Chairman Anderson and All Planning Board Members: 

 

 Re: June 29, 2017, item 9 (Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro Area Minor Master Plan) 

 

How much density is too much? That is the central question raised by a reading of the 

public hearing draft for the plan referenced above. Density in this instance is a way to 

talk about the heights of buildings, and staff proposes two 26-story towers (among a 

collection of shorter buildings). On the face of it, in a neighborhood consisting of one 15-

story building (Meridian), a 5-story garden apartment complex (Avalon), two 2- to 4-

story condominium complexes (Strathmore Park and Parkside), and a townhouse 

community (Stoneybrook)—in that neighborhood, a 26-story tower would appear to be a 

major deviation from neighborhood norms. 

 

Staff bases its recommendation for 26-story towers on a sentence quoted from the 1992 

Master Plan: “The existing towers [on the west side of Rockville Pike] will continue to 

function as landmarks and, together with the proposed high-rise residences east of the 

Pike, will form a gateway to North Bethesda” (my emphasis). The strange thing is, 

though, that “high-rise residences east of the Pike” are not proposed in the 1992 Plan, or 

at least I have not found such a proposal. There is only the piggyback sentence quoted by 

staff, and a couple of other equivalent piggyback sentences, which assume a sentence in 

which high-rise residences east of the Pike are proposed. The assumed foundational 

sentence, though, does not to my knowledge exist. The presence of the piggyback 

sentence suggests that in an earlier draft of the plan, high-rise residences east of the Pike 

were proposed but that the sentence containing the proposal was removed in a later draft, 

with no one thinking to remove the sentences that piggybacked onto the deleted sentence. 

 

I was present in 1992 when the County Council debated and voted on the text of the 

Grosvenor Sector Plan Area (pp. 62–71). The matter of building heights on the land 

between Rockville Pike and Tuckerman Lane was never discussed and was never even 

mentioned. There was plenty of controversy, but none of it so much as skirted the 

question of building heights on the west side of Tuckerman. No one thought about height 



in that location, and no one foresaw it as an issue. It was not an issue because the number 

of allowable dwelling units made sense in terms of the character of the neighborhood. 

Subsequently, when the developer of Strathmore Park, Avalon, and Meridian submitted 

his plans for those buildings to the Planning Board for approval and discussed them with 

neighborhood representatives (of whom I was one), the drawings showed a 15-story 

building. There might have been grumbling about the height, but there was no serious 

objection. 

 

Meridian was built. But neither Meridian’s existence nor the text of the 1992 Master Plan 

gives warrant for a 26-story building on the remaining parcel at the Grosvenor-

Strathmore station. “High-rise” is a term that does not indicate any specific number of 

stories, and even if generic high-rises had been proposed in the 1992 document, there 

would be no justification for now specifying a height of 26 stories. 

 

Those for whom a signature 26-story tower—or two—would give Grosvenor-Strathmore 

the distinction of offering the world an outstanding gateway to North Bethesda are 

forgetting, or turning their backs on, the context of such a gateway. For whom is the 

signature gateway meant? Drivers speeding up the Pike? What about the neighborhood in 

which the outward-oriented signature statement would be implanted—the neighborhood 

that would have to live with the wholly inappropriate signature statement? 

 

Changing the allowable density to the degree recommended by staff is tantamount to 

rejecting one of the two primary principles of the Master Plan: “ensuring compatibility 

with the adjacent . . . communities.” The staff report itself pays lip service to the principle 

when it says, “New development on the last parcel at this Metro station . . . should fit 

within the context and established character of this community.” 

 

Members of the adjacent communities are not questioning the need for some increase in 

allowable density. We are questioning the idea that covering nearly the entire remaining 

parcel with buildings, culminating in 26-story structures, would enhance or even respect 

the neighborhood. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Jane Lewin 

Resident of Parkside Condominium 



From: Maya Sohn
To: MCP-Chair
Cc: Hill, Maren; Wright, Gwen; Afzal, Khalid
Subject: Strathmore Square development
Date: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 4:45:32 PM

Dear Chairman Anderson and members of the planning board,

 

I have had a great time seeing and visiting the retail pop-ups at the Grosvenor-Strathmore Metro
Station. The current station and surrounding area has no life and the pop-ups have brought a new life
to the area. 

 

I very much look forward to having a place to hang out with old friends

​ and neighbors ​, meet new friends, and perhaps have dinner before catching a performance at Strathmore-all within
walking distance. I like the sense of place that the plans for Strathmore Square will create. If allowed the necessary
density, Strathmore Square will add a vibrancy that we haven’t seen before while providing retail amenities that I,
and many others, wish to see.

 

Strathmore Square can bring new life to a stale Metro station that currently only serves to park cars.
I’d like to see the Fivesquares plan be favorably considered by the planning board and help bring new
life to our community.

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
mailto:ujuinmaya@gmail.com


From: John Sciortino
To: MCP-Chair
Cc: Hill, Maren; Wright, Gwen; Afzal, Khalid
Subject: Strathmore Square hearing
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 10:34:32 AM

Dear Chairman Anderson,
 
My family and I live in the Kensington “Parkwood” neighborhood, which is about ¾ mile
from the Grosvenor Strathmore Metro, which I use to commute to my job in downtown DC. I
walk to the Metro station many days, but during the summer and in inclement weather, I
usually drive to the Metro and park at the garage there.
 
Based on what I know about its plans, I support the proposed Strathmore Square. Metro is a
dismal, poorly-run, unreliable transit system, and anything that would make it a more pleasant
experience is welcome. I have enjoyed the vendors that have been near the entrance to the
station lately on a trial basis Wednesdays, Thursdays, and Fridays. They are often the only
smiling faces one sees when taking the Metro.
 
I had some concerns about parking at the station, given that the surface lot and parking garage
are often filled to capacity with commuters after about 8:30 am. However, the developers of
Strathmore Square have unequivocally assured me that there will be no loss of commuter
parking spaces, that new residents will have their own dedicated parking and will not use the
Metro parking spaces, and that any additional demand due to retail businesses will be
negligible.
 
Please be in touch if you have any further questions.
 
Sincerely,
John Sciortino
Kensington, MD
john.sciortino@me.com
301-646-5641

mailto:mcp-chair@mncppc-mc.org
mailto:Maren.Hill@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:gwen.wright@montgomeryplanning.org
mailto:Khalid.Afzal@montgomeryplanning.org


From: Amy Stamm
To: MCP-Chair
Cc: Hill, Maren; Wright, Gwen; Afzal, Khalid
Subject: Strathmore Square
Date: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 4:19:16 PM

Good afternoon Mr. Anderson, 

I’m a Strathmore area resident and I 100% support Fivesquares Development’s proposal 
for Strathmore Square. 

As a daily Metro commuter for my job in D.C., I appreciate the existing arts walk and 
additional connectivity enhancements that Strathmore Square will bring. 

Also, as you may know, there are almost no shops or restaurants within walking distance 
of Strathmore. Strathmore Square remedies that problem with space for local vendors to 
set up shop right in the heart of the planned community. Having these options within 
walking distance from my home will be much nicer than being resigned to always having 
to get in the car or on the Metro just for a sandwich or ice cream cone. 

This proposal is contingent on the Planning Board approving an increased level of 
density, and I fully support this goal. I love living in this area, and more density is an 
absolute “must-have” to ensure that the amenities above will succeed.  

I hope that you will take these factors into consideration and approve greater density 
than what is included in the staff recommendation. 

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


From: Roberto Matus
To: MCP-Chair
Cc: Hill, Maren; Wright, Gwen; Afzal, Khalid
Subject: Support of Strathmore Square
Date: Wednesday, June 28, 2017 12:05:02 AM

Dear Chairman Anderson,

I’d like to add my support for the Strathmore Square development project at the Grosvenor-
Strathmore Metro Station as proposed by FiveSquares Development.

I’ve enjoyed everything about the retail pop-up that’s been at the station for the last several
weeks.  Now, as the proposal for the full development moves forward, I hope to see more of
the same.  The future plans for Strathmore Square offer retail amenities that our community
desperately wants, green space for friends to gather and kids to play, a deeper connection to
Strathmore, and transit oriented development that is much needed in Montgomery County.  

In addition, including a higher density of residential options is in line with the smart growth
practices that Montgomery County is striving for.  Any effort to develop at transit facilities
that can help get cars off the roads should be supported.

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
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